
 
 

Felton Fire Protection District Board of Directors 
Regular Meeting Agenda 

Monday, April 14, 2025 
6:00 p.m. 

Location: Felton Fire Station Meeting Room, 131 Kirby St, Felton California 

Felton Fire Protection District will accommodate persons with disabilities.  Please phone the fire station at 
(831) 335-4422 and communicate your specific needs. Any person may comment on any agenda item and 

must be recognized by the Board Chair prior to comment.  

Call to Order 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Roll Call 

Consideration of Additions/Deletions to the Agenda 

Statements of Disqualification 

Consent Agenda 

1. Approval of the Minutes of March 3, 2025. 

2. Approval of Paid Vendor Claims for the Month of March 2025. 

3. Correspondence-None. 

Public Comment/Oral Communications 

Any person may address the Board at this time on any matter not on this agenda within the subject 
matter jurisdiction of the Felton Fire Protection District.  The Board Chair may request that 
comments be limited to no more than three (3) minutes. Any matter that requires Board action will 
be referred to staff for a report and action at a subsequent meeting.  The Brown Act prohibits the 
board from taking action on any item not listed on the agenda.   

Staff Reports 

        4. Chief’s Report 

General Business                                 



5 . Discussion/Action: Authorize the Chairperson of the Board to Execute the Agreement 
Between Santa Cruz Regional 9-1-1 and Felton Fire Protection District for Communication 
Services. 

 Recommendation: Authorize the Chairperson of the Board to execute the Agreement 
Between Santa Cruz Regional 9-1-1 and Felton Fire Protection District for Communication 
Services on behalf of the Felton Fire Protection District. 

6. Discussion/Action: Consider Notice of the Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) 
Special District Representative Run-Off Election and Take Related Action. 

 Recommendation: Motion to designate the Felton Fire Protection District’s selected 
candidates to serve as the Special District Regular and Alternate Member Seats on the 
Local Agency Formation Commission and direct the Chief to complete and submit the 
Felton Fire Protection District’s LAFCO run-off ballot on or before May 1, 2025. 

7. Discussion/Action: Review Materials Relating to the Sale of the Felton Fire Protection 
District’s Ground Lease for Cell Towers and Designate an Authorized Representative to 
Conduct Negotiations on Behalf of the District; Review and Discuss Solar Replacement 
Project in Area Potentially Affected by Sale of Cell Tower Ground Lease. 

Recommendation: Motion to determine if the Felton Fire Protection District will move 
forward with seeking bids for the potential sale of the District’s ground lease for cell towers 
and designate a District representative to collect bids if the District finds the sale of the 
cellular ground lease is in the best interest of the organization; determine the effect of a 
cellular ground lease sale would have on the District’s ability to move forward with the 
replacement of the solar system and direct the Chief to take related actions with respect to 
replacing the current solar system at the station. 

Director’s Reports/Ad Hoc Committee Reports 

8. Discussion/Action: Review Progress Reports from the Following Ad-Hoc Committees: 
Strategic Planning (Conrad/Crandell); Budget (Shults/Anderson); Policies/SOPs 
(Schwanbeck/Crandell) and Discuss Actions to Facilitate the Efficacy of the Ad Hoc 
Committees. 

Adjournment 

  



APRIL 25, 2025

 Regular Meeting 

Felton Fire Protection 

District Board of Directors 

Board Packet 



ITEM 1 

Felton Fire Protection District Board of Directors 
MINUTES 

Monday, March 3, 2025 
6:00 p.m. 

Minutes are unofficial until approved by the Board of Directors on April 14, 2025. 

Call to Order-Chair Crandell called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Roll Call-Directors Anderson, Conrad, Schwanbeck, Shults, and Chair Crandell were present. 

Consideration of Additions/Deletions to the Agenda-None. 

Statements of Disqualification-None. 

Consent Agenda 

1. Approval of the Minutes of February 03, 2025, and the Special Meeting Minutes of February
15, 2025.

MOTION: Motion made by Director Schwanbeck, seconded by Director Shults, to adopt the
Minutes of February 03, 2025, and the Special Meeting Minutes of February 15, 2025, with
the following correction to the Minutes of February 03, 2025: Correct the spelling of Director
Conrad’s name in the voting key of Item 6.1.

ACTION: The motion carried by the following vote:
AYES: Directors Anderson, Conrad, Schwanbeck, Shults, and Chair Crandell
NOES: None

2. Approval of the 2025 Regular Meeting Schedule of the Felton Fire Protection District Board
of Directors

MOTION: Motion made by Director Schwanbeck, seconded by Director Shults, to approve
the 2025 Regular Meeting Schedule of the Felton Fire Protection District Board of Directors
with the following correction: the regular meeting date of September 1, 2025, is moved to
September 8, 2025, due to the Labor Day holiday.

ACTION: The motion carried by the following vote:
AYES: Directors Anderson, Conrad, Schwanbeck, Shults, and Chair Crandell



 

 ITEM 1 
 

NOES: None 
3. Approval of Paid Vendor Claims for the Month of February 2025. 

MOTION: Motion made by Director Schwanbeck, seconded by Director Shults, to approve 
paid vendor claims for the month of February 2025. 

ACTION: The motion carried by the following vote:  
AYES: Directors Anderson, Conrad, Schwanbeck, Shults, and Chair Crandell 
NOES: None 

4. Correspondence-None. 

Public Comment/Oral Communications-None. 

Director’s Reports-None. 

Ad Hoc Committee Reports 

Director Conrad provided the Board with an update on the activities of the Strategic Plan Ad 
Hoc Committee, which has been meeting on Saturdays since formation at the special 
meeting on February 15, 2025. Directors were given a worksheet with a list of functional 
and/or operational areas that they were requested to prioritize (see attached) and submit to 
the Board Secretary by Friday, March 7, 2025. 

Director Anderson advised the Board the Finance Ad Hoc Committee has not yet convened; 
scheduling is in progress. 

Chair Crandell and Director Schwanbeck provided the Board with an update on the 
Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) Ad Hoc Committee.  

ACTION: Discussion held; no action taken. 

Staff Report 

5. Chief’s Report 
Chief Brownlee presented her report to the Board.  
 
ACTION: Discussion held; no action taken. 

General Business                                 

6. Discussion/Action: TowerPoint Updated Offer Letter to Buy-Out AT&T Cell Tower Lease 
(Anderson/Schwanbeck) (Item continued from 2/03/25 meeting).  

 ACTION: Discussion held; no action taken. 

7. Discussion/Action: Declare Rescue 2366 to be Surplus and Direct the Fire Chief to Take 
Related Actions. 

MOTION: Motion made by Director Conrad, seconded by Director Anderson, to declare 
Rescue 2366 surplus and authorize the Fire Chief to make all necessary arrangements to 



 

 ITEM 1 
 

sell Rescue 2366 to Scotts Valley Fire Protection for $4898.00, as is, not including the radio 
and CradlePoint equipment/license. 

ACTION: The motion carried by the following vote: 
AYES: Directors Anderson, Conrad, Schwanbeck, Shults, and Chair Crandell 
NOES: None 
 

8. Discussion/Action: Consider Adoption of a Resolution of Intent to Terminate Contract with 
CalPERS. 

MOTION: Motion made by Director Anderson, seconded by Director Conrad, to adopt 
Resolution Number 25-01, a Resolution of Intent to Terminate Contract with CalPERS and 
direct the Fire Chief to return with a status update on or before the June 2025 regular 
meeting of the Board of Directors. 

ACTION: The motion carried by the following vote: 
AYES: Directors Anderson, Conrad, Schwanbeck, Shults, and Chair Crandell 
NOES: None 

Adjournment-Chair Crandell adjourned the meeting at 6:39 p.m.  

 

 

__________________________________   Attest: ____________________________________ 
Chair Norm Crandell                                   Tess Fitzgerald, Board Secretary 

 

 

 

 

The next regular meeting of the Board of Directors will be held April 7, 2025, at 6:00 p.m. 

  



 
 

Felton Fire Protection District Board of Directors 
Regular Meeting Agenda 

Monday, April 14, 2025 
6:00 p.m. 

Location: Felton Fire Station Meeting Room, 131 Kirby St, Felton California 

Felton Fire Protection District will accommodate persons with disabilities.  Please phone the fire station at 
(831) 335-4422 and communicate your specific needs. Any person may comment on any agenda item and 

must be recognized by the Board Chair prior to comment.  

Call to Order 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Roll Call 

Consideration of Additions/Deletions to the Agenda 

Statements of Disqualification 

Consent Agenda 

1. Approval of the Minutes of March 3, 2025. 

2. Approval of Paid Vendor Claims for the Month of March 2025. 

3. Correspondence-None. 

Public Comment/Oral Communications 

Any person may address the Board at this time on any matter not on this agenda within the subject 
matter jurisdiction of the Felton Fire Protection District.  The Board Chair may request that 
comments be limited to no more than three (3) minutes. Any matter that requires Board action will 
be referred to staff for a report and action at a subsequent meeting.  The Brown Act prohibits the 
board from taking action on any item not listed on the agenda.   

Staff Reports 

        4. Chief’s Report 

General Business                                 

5 . Discussion/Action: Authorize the Chief to Execute the Agreement Between Santa Cruz 
Regional 9-1-1 and Felton Fire Protection District for Communication Services. 



 Recommendation: Authorize the Chief to execute the Agreement Between Santa Cruz 
Regional 9-1-1 and Felton Fire Protection District for Communication Services on behalf of 
the Felton Fire Protection District. 

6. Discussion/Action: Consider Notice of the Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) 
Special District Representative Run-Off Election and Take Related Action. 

 Recommendation: Motion to designate the Felton Fire Protection District’s selected 
candidates to serve as the Special District Regular and Alternate Member Seats on the 
Local Agency Formation Commission and direct the Chief to complete and submit the 
Felton Fire Protection District’s LAFCO run-off ballot on or before May 1, 2025. 

7. Discussion/Action: Review Materials Relating to the Sale of the Felton Fire Protection 
District’s Ground Lease for Cell Towers and Designate an Authorized Representative to 
Conduct Negotiations on Behalf of the District; Review and Discuss Solar Replacement 
Project in Area Potentially Affected by Sale of Cell Tower Ground Lease. 

Recommendation: Motion to determine if the Felton Fire Protection District will move 
forward with seeking bids for the potential sale of the District’s ground lease for cell towers 
and designate a District representative to collect bids if the District finds the sale of the 
cellular ground lease is in the best interest of the organization; determine the effect of a 
cellular ground lease sale would have on the District’s ability to move forward with the 
replacement of the solar system and direct the Chief to take related actions with respect to 
replacing the current solar system at the station. 

Director’s Reports/Ad Hoc Committee Reports 

8. Discussion/Action: Review Progress Reports from the Following Ad-Hoc Committees: 
Strategic Planning (Conrad/Crandell); Budget (Shults/Anderson); Policies/SOPs 
(Schwanbeck/Crandell) and Discuss Actions to Facilitate the Efficacy of the Ad Hoc 
Committees. 

Adjournment 

  



 

 
 

Felton Fire Protection District Board of Directors 
MINUTES 

Monday, March 3, 2025 
6:00 p.m. 

Minutes are unofficial until approved by the Board of Directors on April 14, 2025. 

 

Call to Order-Chair Crandell called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Roll Call-Directors Anderson, Conrad, Schwanbeck, Shults, and Chair Crandell were present. 

Consideration of Additions/Deletions to the Agenda-None. 

Statements of Disqualification-None. 

Consent Agenda 

1. Approval of the Minutes of February 03, 2025, and the Special Meeting Minutes of February 
15, 2025. 

MOTION: Motion made by Director Schwanbeck, seconded by Director Shults, to adopt the 
Minutes of February 03, 2025, and the Special Meeting Minutes of February 15, 2025, with 
the following correction to the Minutes of February 03, 2025: Correct the spelling of Director 
Conrad’s name in the voting key of Item 6.1. 

ACTION: The motion carried by the following vote: 
AYES: Directors Anderson, Conrad, Schwanbeck, Shults, and Chair Crandell 
NOES: None 
 

2. Approval of the 2025 Regular Meeting Schedule of the Felton Fire Protection District Board 
of Directors  
 
MOTION: Motion made by Director Schwanbeck, seconded by Director Shults, to approve 
the 2025 Regular Meeting Schedule of the Felton Fire Protection District Board of Directors 
with the following correction: the regular meeting date of September 1, 2025, is moved to 
September 8, 2025, due to the Labor Day holiday.  
 
ACTION: The motion carried by the following vote:  
AYES: Directors Anderson, Conrad, Schwanbeck, Shults, and Chair Crandell 



 

NOES: None 
3. Approval of Paid Vendor Claims for the Month of February 2025. 

MOTION: Motion made by Director Schwanbeck, seconded by Director Shults, to approve 
paid vendor claims for the month of February 2025. 

ACTION: The motion carried by the following vote:  
AYES: Directors Anderson, Conrad, Schwanbeck, Shults, and Chair Crandell 
NOES: None 

4. Correspondence-None. 

Public Comment/Oral Communications-None. 

Director’s Reports-None. 

Ad Hoc Committee Reports 

Director Conrad provided the Board with an update on the activities of the Strategic Plan Ad 
Hoc Committee, which has been meeting on Saturdays since formation at the special 
meeting on February 15, 2025. Directors were given a worksheet with a list of functional 
and/or operational areas that they were requested to prioritize (see attached) and submit to 
the Board Secretary by Friday, March 7, 2025. 

Director Anderson advised the Board the Finance Ad Hoc Committee has not yet convened; 
scheduling is in progress. 

Chair Crandell and Director Schwanbeck provided the Board with an update on the 
Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) Ad Hoc Committee. Directors were asked to review 
SOP 3000 in advance of the April meeting, as the SOP Ad Hoc Committee will be bringing an 
item to the April meeting to discuss this SOP.           

ACTION: Discussion held; no action taken. 

Staff Report 

5. Chief’s Report 
Chief Brownlee presented her report to the Board.  
 
ACTION: Discussion held; no action taken. 

General Business                                 

6. Discussion/Action: TowerPoint Updated Offer Letter to Buy-Out AT&T Cell Tower Lease 
(Anderson/Schwanbeck) (Item continued from 2/03/25 meeting).  

 ACTION: Discussion held; no action taken. 

7. Discussion/Action: Declare Rescue 2366 to be Surplus and Direct the Fire Chief to Take 
Related Actions. 



 

MOTION: Motion made by Director Conrad, seconded by Director Anderson, to declare 
Rescue 2366 surplus and authorize the Fire Chief to make all necessary arrangements to 
sell Rescue 2366 to Scotts Valley Fire Protection for $4898.00, as is, not including the radio 
and CradlePoint equipment/license. 

ACTION: The motion carried by the following vote: 
AYES: Directors Anderson, Conrad, Schwanbeck, Shults, and Chair Crandell 
NOES: None 
 

8. Discussion/Action: Consider Adoption of a Resolution of Intent to Terminate Contract with 
CalPERS. 

MOTION: Motion made by Director Anderson, seconded by Director Conrad, to adopt 
Resolution Number 25-01, a Resolution of Intent to Terminate Contract with CalPERS and 
direct the Fire Chief to return with a status update on or before the June 2025 regular 
meeting of the Board of Directors. 

ACTION: The motion carried by the following vote: 
AYES: Directors Anderson, Conrad, Schwanbeck, Shults, and Chair Crandell 
NOES: None 

Adjournment-Chair Crandell adjourned the meeting at 6:39 p.m.  

 

 

__________________________________   Attest: ____________________________________ 
Chair Norm Crandell                                   Tess Fitzgerald, Board Secretary 

 

 

 

 

The next regular meeting of the Board of Directors will be held April 7, 2025, at 6:00 p.m. 

  



ITEM 2



ITEM 2



ITEM 2



ITEM 2



ITEM 2



ITEM 2



ITEM 2



ITEM 2



Item 3 

Correspondence 

No Correspondence Received 



   

    
 ITEM 4 

 

 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Stacie Brownlee, Fire Chief 

Agenda of: April 14, 2025 

Subject: Chief’s Report 

Correspondence 

• None 

Administration 

• CalPERS reached out with a letter notifying that we needed to notify the 16 enrollees in   the 
pension plan that we are looking at terminating the contract with CalPERS. See attached 
Notification. 

Operations 

Felton Fire Protection District responded to 67 calls in the past 30 days: 

Call Type Number of Responses 
Structure 5 
EMS 22 
Alarm 10 
Public Service 25 
Smoke Checks 1 
Vehicle 2 
Wires 2 
Storm Related 0 
Wildland 0 

 
Training 

•  Wildland / EMSIA training  

Logistics 

• Reached out to the solar company to get a quote for new panels, submitted for VFC grant. 
Rejected due to UEI # not updated, Updated the SAM .gov., BFP sprinkler inspection, fire 
extinguisher service performed due to violations brought to our attention to renew our 
insurance. 



  

 ITEM 4 

 

• Up to 20 new hires. 

• The required PPE previously ordered for the Firefighters is coming in and being distributed. 

• Proper tires have been installed on the type 3. 2025-26 budget will have tires budgeted for 
the type 6. This unit does not have the proper tires either.  

• EMT class set for May. Felton will reimburse FF $1000 when they pass the National reg. 

• Shell card ordered for the rigs instead of fueling up at Cal Fire. 

• Concerned that the Auxiliary will lose their non-profit status because they are under the 
same with the squad. There have been many letters mailed to the squad, and they have not 
been addressed. 

Fire Prevention/Education 

•  Firewise event was held at Ben Lomond Fire. CERT at Ben Lomond Fire on April 26th.  

Staff Call Response Report March 2025  

Personnel (FFD) Incident Response # of Incidents Response % 

Albers, Victor 26 67 39% 

Andersen, Thomas 26 67 39% 

Berlanga, Jamie 17 67 25% 

Blum, Isaac 4 67 6% 

Bonn, Kevin 14 67 21% 

Bowman, Brendan 16 67 24% 

Casillas-Rodriguez, Josue 2 67 3% 

Crandell, Forrest 20 67 30% 

Gifford, Micah 3 67 4% 

Jackson, Cian 2 67 3% 

Mitchell, Rebecca 2 67 3% 

Palau, Stephen 36 67 54% 

Schwanbeck, Daniel 6 67 9% 

Swanson-Dexel, Phoenix 3 67 4% 

 



   

    
 ITEM 4 

 

 

Personnel (BLFD) Incident Response # of Incidents Response % 
Adam, Nick 4 67 6% 
Auldridge, Jacob 4 67 6% 
Ayers, Mike 6 67 9% 
Brownlee, Stacie 5 67 7% 
Burgess, Nick 22 67 33% 
Dawson, Audrey 31 67 46% 
Fisher, Garrett 11 67 16% 
Garrahan, Owen 11 67 16% 
Giannini, Kevin 21 67 31% 
Sanders, Matt 1 67 1% 
Scarborough, Connor 12 67 18% 
Sheets, Jonathan 22 67 33% 
Stieger, Elias 1 67 1% 
Velaso, Jordan 19 67 28% 
Whitney, Tonka 1 67 1% 

     



Laurie Dennis <ldennis@feltonfire.com>

Felton Fire Protection District CID 1920391483
1 message

Camacho, Roselee <Roselee.Camacho@calpers.ca.gov> Tue, Apr 8, 2025 at 8:41 AM
To: Laurie Dennis <ldennis@feltonfire.com>
Cc: "Nguyen, Andy" <Andy.Nguyen@calpers.ca.gov>, "Brooks, Danielle" <Danielle.Brooks@calpers.ca.gov>, "Lopez, Liza"
<Liza.Lopez@calpers.ca.gov>

Good morning,

In confirmation of receipt of the Felton Fire Protection District’s initial resolution of intent to terminate its CalPERS pension contract,
attached is the participant contact information data on record.  As part of the termination process, CalPERS is required per California
Government Code, Section 20507(a)(1)(i) to provide the contact information of the agency’s employees:

“The board shall provide the contracting agency with contact information data in its possession for the purpose of providing past
employee members, former members, and retired members the notice required by this subparagraph. The contact information data
shall be provided to the contracting agency in an open format that is platform independent, machine readable, retrievable,
downloadable, indexable, and electronically searchable by commonly used Internet search applications.”   

In addition, in accordance with California Government Code Section 20570(a)(1)(ii), the terminating agency must:

“Within 14 days of receipt of the contact information data described in clause (i), the contracting agency shall provide written notice to
past employee members, former members, and retired members of the adoption of the resolution giving notice of intention to
terminate.”

This is notification of the required action by the terminating agency; CalPERS does not provide a template or sample language related
to the notification.

Thank you
Roselee Camacho

Associate Governmental Program Analyst

Pension Contract Management & Prefunding

 Programs Division

(916) 795-2024

Agency Participant Contact Information - Felton Fire Protection District  04022025.xlsx
27K

ITEM 4

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=992584fff8&view=att&th=19616104167728b5&attid=0.1&disp=attd&safe=1&zw
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=992584fff8&view=att&th=19616104167728b5&attid=0.1&disp=attd&safe=1&zw


 

 
FELTON FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
131 K irby Street, Felton  CA  95018  831  335-4422 

 
 
 
 
April 08, 2025 
 
 
Employee name 
Address 
Address 
 
 
 
This letter serves as formal notification to you as a past employee member,  

former member or retired member of Felton Fire Protection District.  

As required by California Government Code Section 20570(a)(1)(ii) this notification 

is to inform you of the adoption of a resolution by the Felton Fire Protection Board 

of Directors of their intent to terminate the contract for pension services with CalPERS. 

Board members voted to move forward with this resolution at their board meeting held  

March 03, 2025. 

Thank you, 

 

Laurie Dennis  

Administrative Assistant 

 
 
 
 
 
(copy sent to personal email) 

ITEM 4



ITEM 5



ITEM 5



ITEM 5



ITEM 5



ITEM 5



ITEM 5



ITEM 5



ITEM 5



ITEM 5



ITEM 5



ITEM 5



ITEM 5



ITEM 5



ITEM 5



ITEM 5



ITEM 5



ITEM 5



ITEM 5



ITEM 5



ITEM 5



ITEM 5



ITEM 5



ITEM 5



ITEM 5



ITEM 5



ITEM 5



Board Secretary <boardsec@feltonfire.com>

Fwd: LAFCO Election Results & Next Steps
1 message

Norman Crandell <ncrandell@feltonfire.com> Fri, Mar 28, 2025 at 2:31 PM
To: Board Secretary <boardsec@feltonfire.com>

Tess please do put this on the agenda for the April meeting. 
Thank you. 
n.

---------- Forwarded message ---------
From: Stacie Brownlee <firechief@feltonfire.com>
Date: Thu, Mar 27, 2025, 1:23 PM
Subject: Fwd: LAFCO Election Results & Next Steps
To: Jim Anderson <janderson@feltonfire.com>, Norman Crandell <ncrandell@feltonfire.com>, <mshults@feltonfire.com>,
Doug Conrad <dconrad@feltonfire.com>, <eschwanbeck@feltonfire.com>

---------- Forwarded message ---------
From: Joe Serrano <Joe.Serrano@santacruzcountyca.gov>
Date: Thu, Mar 27, 2025 at 11:21 AM
Subject: LAFCO Election Results & Next Steps
To:
Cc: Francisco Estrada <Francisco.Estrada@santacruzcountyca.gov>

Good Morning Special Districts,

LAFCO closed the election yesterday for the regular and alternate district member seats on the Commission. Good
news is that 19 out of the 20 independent special districts participated in this year’s election and submitted their
ballots before the 3/26 deadline. The more interesting news was that the race for both seats was extremely close. So
close that none of the candidates received a majority vote from the districts (crazy, right?). As a result, a run-off
election will be required for both categories involving the top two candidates, as shown below:

Regular Member Seat Run-off Election Candidates

Jim Anderson (Felton Fire Protection District); and
Lani Faulkner (Central Fire District)

Alternate Member Seat Run-off Election Candidates

Ed Banks (Pajaro Valley Public Cemetery District; and
Lani Faulkner (Central Fire District)

So what’s next?? The Commission will certify the election results at our next LAFCO Meeting (Wednesday, April 2). At
the April meeting, the Commission will direct staff to conduct a run-off election from April 2 to April 30. The run-offITEM 6

mailto:firechief@feltonfire.com
mailto:janderson@feltonfire.com
mailto:ncrandell@feltonfire.com
mailto:mshults@feltonfire.com
mailto:dconrad@feltonfire.com
mailto:eschwanbeck@feltonfire.com
mailto:Joe.Serrano@santacruzcountyca.gov
mailto:Joe.Serrano@santacruzcountyca.gov
mailto:Francisco.Estrada@santacruzcountyca.gov
mailto:Francisco.Estrada@santacruzcountyca.gov


ballots will be sent to you on April 2nd after the LAFCO Meeting. A staff report explaining this whole process will be
part of the April 2nd Agenda Packet, which will be shared with you later today.

I am informing you about the results now so that you can place the discussion and consideration of the run-off
election/ballot during your next board meeting in April.

Thank you all for participating in the initial election. It is evident that LAFCO is no longer an obscure organization but
rather a tool and resource for the local agencies, especially special districts. I hope that this time around we get all 20
districts to vote in the run-off election.

Let me know if you have any questions.

Thank you.

-Joe

Joe A. Serrano

Executive Officer
Local Agency Formation Commission of Santa Cruz County

701 Ocean Street, Room 318-D, Santa Cruz, CA 95060

Email: joe@santacruzlafco.org

Phone: (831) 454-2055

--
Stacie Brownlee
Fire Chief, 
Felton Fire Protection District
131 Kirby Street, Felton CA 95018
Office (831) 335-4422
Cell (831) 234-3840

ITEM 6

https://www.google.com/maps/search/701+Ocean+Street,+Room+318?entry=gmail&source=g
mailto:joe@santacruzlafco.org
http://www.santacruzlafco.org/
http://www.santacruzlafco.org/
https://www.google.com/maps/search/131+Kirby+Street,+Felton+CA+95018+Office+(831?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.google.com/maps/search/131+Kirby+Street,+Felton+CA+95018+Office+(831?entry=gmail&source=g


Board Secretary <boardsec@feltonfire.com>

Fwd: SD Seats on LAFCO re Run Off Election
2 messages

Stacie Brownlee <firechief@feltonfire.com> Wed, Apr 2, 2025 at 2:45 PM
To: Board Secretary <boardsec@feltonfire.com>

Need to add this to the agenda

---------- Forwarded message ---------
From: Joe Serrano <Joe.Serrano@santacruzcountyca.gov>
Date: Wed, Apr 2, 2025 at 12:38 PM
Subject: SD Seats on LAFCO re Run Off Election
To: firechief@feltonfire.com <firechief@feltonfire.com>
Cc: Laurie Dennis BLF <ldennis@benlomondfd.com>, Francisco Estrada <Francisco.Estrada@santacruzcountyca.gov>

Good Afternoon Chief,

Attached is a letter discussing the need for a run-off election for both the regular and alternate member seats. Also
attached is the official run-off ballot (without the Attachment 2 label on it). It would be great if your board took
action on the ballot before the Thursday, May 1st deadline.

Let me know if you have any questions.

Thank you for your participation in this secondary election.

-Joe

Joe A. Serrano

Executive Officer
Local Agency Formation Commission of Santa Cruz County

701 Ocean Street, Room 318-D, Santa Cruz, CA 95060

Email: joe@santacruzlafco.org

Phone: (831) 454-2055

ITEM 6

mailto:Joe.Serrano@santacruzcountyca.gov
mailto:Joe.Serrano@santacruzcountyca.gov
mailto:firechief@feltonfire.com
mailto:firechief@feltonfire.com
mailto:ldennis@benlomondfd.com
mailto:Francisco.Estrada@santacruzcountyca.gov
mailto:Francisco.Estrada@santacruzcountyca.gov
https://www.google.com/maps/search/701+Ocean+Street,+Room+318?entry=gmail&source=g
mailto:joe@santacruzlafco.org
http://www.santacruzlafco.org/
http://www.santacruzlafco.org/


--
Stacie Brownlee
Fire Chief, 
Felton Fire Protection District
131 Kirby Street, Felton CA 95018
Office (831) 335-4422
Cell (831) 234-3840

2 attachments

4-2-25 Ltr to FFPD.pdf
1872K

SC LAFCO Official Run Off Ballot.pdf
32K

Board Secretary <boardsec@feltonfire.com> Thu, Apr 10, 2025 at 8:17 AM
To: Stacie Brownlee <firechief@feltonfire.com>

Got it
[Quoted text hidden]

ITEM 6

https://www.google.com/maps/search/131+Kirby+Street,+Felton+CA+95018+Office+(831?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.google.com/maps/search/131+Kirby+Street,+Felton+CA+95018+Office+(831?entry=gmail&source=g
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=2298309679&view=att&th=195f877f2850fa41&attid=0.1&disp=attd&realattid=195f87704b7c19760fe2&safe=1&zw
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=2298309679&view=att&th=195f877f2850fa41&attid=0.1&disp=attd&realattid=195f87704b7c19760fe2&safe=1&zw
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=2298309679&view=att&th=195f877f2850fa41&attid=0.2&disp=attd&realattid=195f87704b7ea870f703&safe=1&zw
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=2298309679&view=att&th=195f877f2850fa41&attid=0.2&disp=attd&realattid=195f87704b7ea870f703&safe=1&zw


April 2, 2025 

Stacie Brownlee, Fire Chief 

Felton Fire Protection District 

131 Kirby St. 

Felton, CA 95018 

SUBJECT:  RUN-OFF ELECTION FOR SPECIAL DISTRICT SEATS ON LAFCO 

Dear Chief Brownlee: 

The purpose of this letter is to solicit your district’s vote for the regular and alternate special district 

member seats on LAFCO.  As you may recall, an election was recently held to address the 

upcoming term expiration of Jim Anderson’s regular member seat and Ed Banks’ alternate 

member seat – both ending on May 5, 2025. A total of 19 ballots were submitted before the March 

26th deadline. However, none of the candidates for either seat received a majority vote from the 

special districts. Pursuant to LAFCO’s adopted policies, if no candidate receives the required 

number of votes, a run-off election shall be conducted by a second mailed ballot vote.  

Since no candidate received a majority of the votes for either seat, a run-off election will be 

conducted in April involving the top two candidates from each category. The run-off election for 

the regular member seat will involve Jim Anderson and Lani Faulkner. The run-off election for 

the alternate member seat will involve Ed Banks and Lani Faulkner.  

Election Process 

The run-off election will be conducted by mail. Each district gets one vote for each seat, which 

shall be executed on the enclosed ballot by either the presiding officer of the district board or by 

their designee. The deadline to return the executed ballot to the LAFCO office will be no 

later than 8:00 a.m. on Thursday, May 1, 2025.  Ballots can be mailed, hand-delivered, or 

emailed to the LAFCO office.  If emailed, please follow-up by mailing the ballot with an original 

signature.  LAFCO will announce the results on May 1st after reviewing and counting the submitted 

ballots. The Independent Special District Selection Committee rules of procedure are posted on 

the Policies and Rules page of LAFCO’s website: https://santacruzlafco.org/about/policies-

procedures/  

Please contact me at the LAFCO office if you have any questions about the voting process. 

Sincerely, 

Joe A. Serrano 

Executive Officer 

Attachments: 

1) Candidates’ Information

2) Official Run-Off Ballot

Santa Cruz Local Agency Formation Commission 
701 Ocean Street # 318D 

Santa Cruz CA 95060 
Phone: (831) 454-2055  

Email: info@santacruzlafco.org 

Website: www.santacruzlafco.org

ITEM 6



ATTACHMENT 1

ITEM 6



ITEM 6



ITEM 6



ITEM 6



Page 1 of 2 

 LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF SANTA CRUZ COUNTY 

NOMINATION FOR LAFCO’S SPECIAL DISTRICT REGULAR & ALTERNATE MEMBER SEATS 
(TERM BEGINNING MAY 2025 AND ENDING IN MAY 2029) 

INSTRUCTIONS: 
If you are interested in serving as a special district member on LAFCO, please complete and sign 
the following application. The completed application can be mailed, hand delivered, or emailed (as 
a PDF with signature) to: 701 Ocean Street, Room 318-D, Santa Cruz, CA 95060 (mailing address) 
or joe@santacruzlafco.org (email).   

Applications must be submitted to LAFCO no later than 
3:00 p.m. on January 24, 2025  

I am applying for (CHECK ONE): 
Special District Regular Member ONLY Prefer 

Special District Alternate Member ONLY 
Either Position X 

***Note that water district board members are NOT eligible for the proposed regular member 
position because a water district board member currently occupies the other regular seat.*** 

NAME: ____Iwalani (Lani) N. Faulkner_____________________________________________ 

MAILING ADDRESS: ____ _________ 

PHONE(s): Home:___ ___ Cell/Business:_____ __________ 

EMAIL:______EquityTransitSantaCruz@gmail.com________________________________ 

DISTRICT BOARD ON WHICH YOU CURRENTLY SERVE:_Central Fire Board___________ 

PREVIOUS BOARD, COMMISSION, OR COMMITTEE SERVED (Identify organization[s] and length of 
term[s]):     

Santa Cruz Central Fire Board (Dec 2024 – current) 
CA State Democratic Delegate (2023 – current) 
Democratic National Delegate to the 2024 Convention, Elected (2024) 
Democratic Central Committee Alternate (2022 – current) 
Mid County Dems Executive Board (Current until 2026) 
Santa Cruz County Democratic Women’s Club Board (2025 - ) 
Sierra Club Executive Committee, Santa Cruz Group Ventana Chapter (2023 – current) 
Santa Cruz County Friends of the Rail and Trail, Equity Officer (2022) 
Community Traffic Safety Coalition, Stakeholder (2022 – current) 
Climate Action and Adaptation, Planning & Grants with the Office of Response, Recovery and 
Resilience, Stakeholder (2022 - current) 
Santa Cruz Metro “ReImagine Metro”, Stakeholder (2022 - 2023) 
Santa Cruz County Housing Element Community Stakeholder (2023) 
Caltrans Stakeholder on Housing Working Group (2023) 
Caltrans Stakeholder on Equity, Engagement and Health Working Group (2023) 
Rainbow Defense Coalition, Safety and de-escalation volunteer (2023 – current) 
Santa Cruz City Climate Action Task Force, Stakeholder (2022) 
Equity Transit, Founder (2021) 
Little People's Repertory Theater, Video Production and Grant Assistance (2008 – 2014) 
Buena Vista Road Association, Boulder Creek, President (2001 - 2004) 

ITEM 6



Page 2 of 2 

STATEMENT OF INTEREST: 
You may attach a separate sheet to present additional qualifications or a statement of interest in 
serving on LAFCO. 

Our county is at a critical juncture as we face a number of challenges. Climate change continues 
to stress our emergency response capabilities, particularly as fire departments strive to 
maintain economic strength while ensuring safe and effective service amidst rising equipment 
and resource costs. Compounding this is the increasing pressure on our clean water supply due 
to prolonged drought and factors affecting water quality. Additionally, the state's mandate to 
significantly expand housing development over the next eight years—through county and city 
Housing Elements—will place additional demands on special districts, emergency services, and 
our natural resources. I am eager to leverage my collaborative skills and experience to work 
with stakeholders across the county to address these pressing issues. 

Currently, I serve on the Central Fire District Board of Directors, an honor that carries personal 
significance as my grandfather, John A. Gilman, was one of only nine civilian firefighters 
awarded the Purple Heart for his service in Oahu during the bombing of Pearl Harbor. 
Moreover, my mother committed decades to volunteering with our local fire auxiliary. I have 
been a certified NOLS Wilderness Medicine first responder since 2007. 

Having spent my formative years in the fire-prone Sierra Nevada Foothills of California, I 
developed an understanding of the importance of creating defensible spaces and being fire-
ready as well as understanding proper installment and care of wells on our property. As a 
nearly 30-year resident of Santa Cruz County—over a decade in rural areas like Boulder Creek 
and Happy Valley—I recognize the critical need for community collaboration to mitigate and 
respond to challenges and disasters and ensuring critical services, including fire prevention, 
water, and waste management.  

As a scientist, woman of color, and educator, I bring a history of facilitating informed and 
equitable decision-making. I understand the importance of addressing a myriad of complex 
issues such as agricultural land preservation, population growth, land use, fire protection, water 
and waste management, and other important considerations which impact our local 
community members and natural resources. My academic background includes a Master of 
Science, equipping me with extensive research and analytical experience. 

I am committed to contributing my skills and experiences to help our county navigate the 
challenges ahead. I kindly request your vote in support of my appointment as a LAFCO 
Commissioner. Thank you for consideration. 

CERTIFICATION: 
I certify that the above information is true and correct and I authorize the verification of the information in the 
application. 

_________________________________________________ _____January 21, 2025____ 
Signature of Board Member Interested in Serving on LAFCO Date 

ITEM 6



Page 1 of 1 

 LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF SANTA CRUZ COUNTY 

2025 BALLOT FOR THE SPECIAL DISTRICT  
REGULAR & ALTERNATE MEMBER SEATS ON LAFCO 

(RUN-OFF ELECTION) 

INSTRUCTIONS: 
Please check the box to the left of the person you are voting for. Vote ONLY for one 
candidate in each category. 

REGULAR MEMBER SEAT   (vote for one) 

Candidate District Vote By Marking (X) 

Jim Anderson (incumbent) Felton Fire Protection District 

Lani Faulkner Central Fire District 

ALTERNATE MEMBER SEAT   (vote for one) 

Candidate District Vote By Marking (X) 

Ed Banks (incumbent) Pajaro Valley Cemetery District 

Lani Faulkner Central Fire District 

NEXT STEPS 
After voting, please hand-deliver, mail, or email the signed ballot back to LAFCO. If 
emailed, please follow-up by mailing the ballot with an original signature. The ballots will 
be collected until 8:00 a.m. on Thursday, May 1, 2025. Any ballots received after 8:00 
a.m. will not be counted.

CERTIFICATION: 

I, _________________________, am voting on behalf of the following independent 

special district: ________________________________________________________. 

____________________________________ _________________________ 
Voting Designee Signature  Date 

ATTACHMENT 2

ITEM 6



Board Secretary <boardsec@feltonfire.com>

Fwd: LAFCO Special District Representative Election
1 message

Stacie Brownlee <firechief@feltonfire.com> Wed, Apr 2, 2025 at 4:11 PM
To: Jim Anderson <janderson@feltonfire.com>, mshults@feltonfire.com, Norman Crandell <ncrandell@feltonfire.com>, Doug
Conrad <dconrad@feltonfire.com>, eschwanbeck@feltonfire.com, Board Secretary <boardsec@feltonfire.com>

--------- Forwarded message ---------
From: Ed Banks <EdBanks@kbkinsurance.com>
Date: Wed, Apr 2, 2025 at 3:00 PM
Subject: LAFCO Special District Representative Election
To: dwalters@feltonfire.com <dwalters@feltonfire.com>
Cc: ldennis@feltonfire.com <ldennis@feltonfire.com>

Chief Walters,

Note doubt you have heard by now the results of the special district seats (regular and alternate) election will result in a 
runoff to be conducted between April 2, 2025, and May 1, 2025.  Both Jim Anderson (Felton Fire Protection District) and I 
(Pajaro Valley Public Cemetery District), while receiving the most votes (Jim for the regular LAFCO seat and me for the 
alternate’s seat), were short by two votes of receiving the necessary votes to retain our seats.   Jim and I are committed to 
representing the Special districts of Santa Cruz County on the commission in such a manner as to benefit the interests of 
all.

I would like to ask for your and the Felton Fire Protection District Board to vote Jim Anderson to the Special District regular 
seat and me to the alternate seat.  Your board will be receiving a “run-off” ballot within the week or so.  I hope we can 
count on your and the board’s support.  In case you didn't see it, I’ve enclosed my election application for board review.

Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions or specific concerns as it relates to FFPD and LAFCO.

Thank you for your consideration and service to the community.

Regards,

Ed Banks

KBK Insurance Agency
1006 Freedom Boulevard
Watsonville, CA  95076
Email:  edbanks@kbkinsurance.com
Phone:  (831.724.1085 ext 305)

ITEM 6

mailto:EdBanks@kbkinsurance.com
mailto:dwalters@feltonfire.com
mailto:dwalters@feltonfire.com
mailto:ldennis@feltonfire.com
mailto:ldennis@feltonfire.com


LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF SANTA CRUZ COUNTY 

NOMINATION FOR LAFCO'S SPECIAL DISTRICT REGULAR & AL TERNA TE MEMBER SEATS 

(TERM BEGINNING MAY 2025 AND ENDING IN MAY 2029) 

INSTRUCTIONS: 

If you are interested in serving as a special district member on LAFCO, please complete and sign the 
following application. The completed application can be mailed, hand delivered, or emailed (as a PDF with 
signature) to: 701 Ocean Street, Room 318-0, Santa Cruz, CA 95060 (mailing address) or 
joe@santacruzlafco.org (email). 

Applications must be submitted to LAFCO no later than 
3:00 p.m. on January 24, 2025 

I am a I in for CHECK ONE : 

S ecial District Alternate Member ONLY 
Either Position 

***Note that water district board members are NOT eligible for the proposed regular member position 
because a water district board member currently occupies the other regular seat.*** 

NAME: ____ -_\::_0_'-'.J_t::._Q.0--=------�-' -�-----------------

MAILING ADDRESS: redacted 
PHONE(s): Home: redacted Cell/Business redacted

EMAIL: cb�N�@) m�\NSL\(2ANC£ . Ctl"-\

DISTRICT BOARD ON WHICH YOU CURRENTLY SERVE?Al" f>.12:.:> \J Ji..l.1£.,"f. r "'6 UC.. �� �S�,

PREVIOUS BOARD, COMMISSION, OR COMMITTEE SERVED (Identify organization[s] and length of term[s]): 

�rv� �PeetAL t'.::)1.5,Q...\c.T �L,E:a.N�� McM6ee.. ,z, SAN,.�
� lAftn. 

STATEMENT OF INTEREST: 

You may attach a separate sheet to present additional qualifications or a statement of interest in serving 
on LAFCO. �e, A"Tr��c:D

CERTIFICATION: 

I certify that the above information is true and correct and I authorize the verification of the information in 
the application. 

Signature of Board Member Interested in Serving on LAFCO 

ITEM 6 
Date 



Edward K. Banks 

Ed Banks, a native Californian, was born in San Francisco and grew up in La Selva Beach. 
He attended Aptos Elementary School and is a 1966 graduate of Watsonville High School. 
He received his A.A. degree from Cabrillo College in 1968 and Bachelor of Arts degree 
from Sonoma State University in 1970. His military commitment commenced as a Naval 
Reservist in November of 1970, being stationed at Flag Administrative Unit, Naval Air 
Station Barbers Point, Hawaii. His active-duty assignment concluded in August of 1972, 
and ultimate honorable discharge in August of 1975. 

Ed has been in the insurance profession since 1972, beginning with commercial 
underwriting assignments at the Hartford Insurance Company, San Francisco, and 
Fireman's Fund Insurance Company, San Jose. In 1977, he moved back to Watsonville to 
join the firm of Martin & Friend Insurance Agency. In April of 1996, he merged the agency 
with Kane-Hall-Palmtag Insurance to form KBK Insurance Agency. 

Ed's community service has included service on the following organizations' boards of 
directors: Insurance Brokers and Agents of the West, Independent Insurance Agents & 
Brokers of Watsonville (past president), Watsonville National Little League, Watsonville 
YMCA, Pajaro Valley Chamber of Commerce, Rotary Club of Watsonville (past President 
1993-94), Monterey Bay Bank and Watsonville Firefighters' Association. He was a reserve 
lieutenant for the Watsonville Fire Department from 1981 to 2006. During his 25-year 
career with the fire department, he successfully completed courses of study in Fire 
Command Operations and Fire Cause Determination at the National Fire Academy, 
Emmitsburg, Maryland. He also served on the Santa Cruz County Grand Jury in 1985-86 
as well as the Santa Cruz County Hazardous Materials Advisory Commission 2007-2009. 
In 2010, Ed attended the National Emergency Training Center, Emmitsburg, Maryland, 
receiving certificates of completion in Community Emergency Response Team Operations 
and Program Management. 

He is past president of the board of directors of the Cabrillo College Foundation as well as 
past governing board chair and former Area VII Trustee for Cabrillo Community College. 
Ed currently serves as a trustee of the Pajaro Valley Cemetery District as well as Special 
Districts alternate member, Santa Cruz County LAFCO. 

An avid San Francisco Giants' fan has taken "road trips" with his sons and Father-in-law. 
Ed also likes gardening, traveling and golf with friends. 

Eb\01142025 

ITEM 6



Board Secretary <boardsec@feltonfire.com>

Fw: Run-Off for LAFCO Commission by the Felton Fire Protection District
ncrandell@feltonfire.com <ncrandell@feltonfire.com> Sun, Apr 6, 2025 at 10:39 PM
Reply-To: "ncrandell@feltonfire.com" <ncrandell@feltonfire.com>
To: Board Secretary <boardsec@feltonfire.com>

----- Forwarded Message -----
From: Iwalani Faulkner <equitytransitsantacruz@gmail.com>
To: "blfdchief@benlomondfd.com" <blfdchief@benlomondfd.com>
Sent: Sunday, April 6, 2025 at 12:06:18 PM PDT
Subject: Run-Off for LAFCO Commission by the Felton Fire Protection District

Dear Chief Brownlee and Felton Fire Protection District Board Members:

I welcome an opportunity to attend your April Board meeting where you plan to vote on the LAFCO run-off 
nominations. Would you be willing to send me the date and time of your April Board Meeting. Looking at 
the Felton Fire Protection District website, the April meeting date and agenda have not yet been listed. If 
I am available, I would appreciate an opportunity to come speak to the board members during your April 
Board meeting for the LAFCO vote. I was unable to attend your February Board meeting when you voted on 
the LAFCO nominations. Below this email is an email I sent to special districts prior to their LAFCO vote 
providing additional information regarding my experience relevant to LAFCO.

I am honored to have received nominations for the Voting Member seat from eight special districts, 
including unanimous support from all Central Fire Board Members, the Ben Lomond Fire Protection District 
Board, and for the Alternate seat from seven other special districts, including the Scotts Valley Fire 
Department and the Scotts Valley Water District. These endorsements speak to my commitment to 
advancing the interests of our community and the role special districts hold countywide.

As you may have heard from Mr. Joe Serrano, our LAFCO Executive Officer, there will be a run-off election 
for both the Voting Member and Alternate seats, as no candidate received more than 50% of the votes in 
the initial round. I am writing to humbly ask for your support and nomination in this upcoming run-off, and 
to encourage your consideration of me for both the Voting and Alternate seats. Having lived in Boulder 
Creek for close to a decade, I have a deep appreciation for the high quality service that the San Lorenzo 
Valley Volunteer Fire departments provide to the community.

My experience – spanning rural agriculture, medicine, governance, as well as fire and water services –
equips me with a broad and deep understanding of the complex issues we face. One of my primary 
concerns is how we can effectively plan for the future in light of the state's growing housing requirements. I 
believe it is essential that LAFCO represents not only the immediate needs of our districts but also 
anticipates the long-term impacts on infrastructure, services, and resources. The State of California 
continues to challenge funding of our fire agencies and I am eager to represent our fire agencies in

ITEM 6

mailto:equitytransitsantacruz@gmail.com
mailto:equitytransitsantacruz@gmail.com
mailto:blfdchief@benlomondfd.com
mailto:blfdchief@benlomondfd.com
https://feltonfire.com/


challenging legislation like that proposed by Senator Wiener that will further rob our fire departments of
critical funding.

I encourage you to reach out to Chief Nee and the Central Fire Board members to better understand
my professionalism on the Central Fire Board. Central Fire, as the largest local fire district in the county, has
led the way in setting operational trends and best practices, offering support and guidance to other fire
districts when needed. Despite its significant presence and leadership, Central Fire has never had a
representative seated on the County LAFCO – a gap I am eager to help fill.

If nominated and elected, I would make it a priority to engage with every special district, ensuring that their
unique needs and concerns are understood and represented. This dialogue will help ensure that our special
districts receive the attention they deserve at the County LAFCO table, contributing to better, more effective
policy decisions that reflect the diverse needs of our community.

As we look at the challenges ahead for our county and its growing population, I believe it is crucial that we
strengthen the voice of our special districts at the LAFCO level, ensuring our leadership continues to meet
the high standards our communities expect.

Thank you again for considering my nomination. I look forward to working alongside you to enhance the
future of our special districts.

Warm regards,
Lani Faulkner

PRIOR EMAIL: The email below was not sent to the Felton Fire Board as their LAFCO Voting Meeting had already
been held.
Dear Chief Brownlee and Felton Fire District Board Members:

By now, you should have received my application, along with a brief overview of my interest in serving on LAFCO from
Joe Serrano. I would like to take this opportunity to expand on my experience, so you have a clearer understanding of
the expertise I would bring to the commission. I have consistently dedicated myself to service in our community and
developed a deep understanding of good governance.

My diverse experience in agriculture, medicine, education, transportation, and governance has shaped my ability to
assess complex problems, engage in active listening, and collaborate effectively with others. These skills are essential
for any commissioner, and I believe they would be particularly valuable in the context of LAFCO’s work.

As a research scientist, I have honed my ability to analyze and summarize data as well as design studies, skills directly
applicable to LAFCO's work in optimizing efficiencies, consolidating services, protecting agricultural lands, and guiding
special districts. Growing up in an agricultural community and actively participating in Future Farmers of America (FFA)
through high school, I gained hands-on experience with the issues LAFCO addresses, such as preserving agricultural
land and participating in good governance. Additionally, my background in farming, study and research in the sciences,
and training in classical opera and performance instilled in me a discipline for hard work, preparation, and public
engagement.

I earned both a BS and MS in physiology at UC Davis, focusing on biochemical endocrinology. My research on inducing
early reproductive maturity in white sturgeon supported efforts to replenish depleted populations in the Sacramento
Delta. This experience deepened my appreciation for issues related to water quality and availability, which are central to
California's future, and equipped me with a framework for critical analysis and collaboration necessary as a
commissioner on LAFCO.

In my professional career, I’ve worked with organizations like Johnson & Johnson, Abbott Vascular, and Stryker
Neurovascular. These roles required me to collaborate across departments and institutions, engage with regulatory
bodies, negotiate contracts, and manage budgets, all while maintaining compliance with industry standards. These
skills are directly transferable to the work LAFCO does, especially in navigating complex regulations and ensuring the
sustainability of essential services.

ITEM 6



Locally, I have dedicated nearly three decades to volunteer work, from serving as president of my road association and
volunteering with local youth theater and mountain biking programs to serving as a leader with organizations
advocating for equity and the environment. As road association president, I facilitated community engagement to
address both practical issues like road maintenance and legal challenges as well as successfully encouraged a
connected and supportive neighborhood environment, coordinating social events like summer BBQs and concerts.

My involvement in governance and environmental initiatives has further sharpened my skills in leadership. I founded
Equity Transit to raise awareness of the importance of robust public transit for equitable access to opportunity. I
regularly attend meetings of the Regional Transportation Commission, the Board of Supervisors, and local City
Councils, where I advocate for better solutions to transit, housing, and environmental issues. I also serve as a volunteer
with the Rainbow Defense Coalition, bringing my skills in de-escalation and community support to ensure safe and
inclusive spaces, including activities centered around LGBTQ+ and communities of color.

In addition to these roles, I am an active member of the Santa Cruz Central Fire Board and serve on the Executive
Committee of the Sierra Club. As an alternate on the Democratic Central Committee and a board member of the Mid
County Dems and Democratic Women’s Club, I bring a wealth of experience in parsing through complex documents,
making informed decisions, and guiding policy initiatives. My appointment as a State Democratic Delegate since 2023,
having been elected as a National Democratic Delegate in 2024, and my work on state legislation further demonstrate
my commitment to civic engagement and public service.

LAFCO plays a critical role in supporting the efficient, transparent, and sustainable delivery of services across
California’s special districts. The commission’s ability to conduct studies and guide annexations, dissolutions, and
consolidations ensures that our communities thrive. As a scientist and woman of color, I believe my breadth of
experience, collaborative approach, and dedication to building sustainable, strong communities would bring a unique
and positive perspective to LAFCO.

I would be honored to serve as a regular member of the Santa Cruz LAFCO Board, representing the Central Fire
District, bringing a fresh perspective to the commission. I am particularly excited about the possibility of serving as a
scientist and second female representative on the 7-member board. I welcome the opportunity to answer any questions
and appreciate the possibility of connecting with board members individually and, if possible, attending your next board
meeting. It appears that LAFCO will be an agenda item on your February 11th agenda and I would like to attend your
meeting on that date to speak for this item. 

You can view my professional background on my LinkedIn profile: https://www.linkedin.com/in/aidasings/.  I am
available by phone at 831-278-1007 or by email at EquityTransitSantaCruz@gmail.com.

Thank you for your time and consideration.

Sincerely,

Iwalani (Lani) Faulkner

ITEM 6

https://www.linkedin.com/in/aidasings/
https://www.linkedin.com/in/aidasings/
mailto:EquityTransitSantaCruz@gmail.com
mailto:EquityTransitSantaCruz@gmail.com


Board Secretary <boardsec@feltonfire.com>

Fwd: CA-A650 - AT&T Rooftop Valuation
Stacie Brownlee <firechief@feltonfire.com> Mon, Mar 31, 2025 at 12:48 PM
To: Norman Crandell <ncrandell@feltonfire.com>, Board Secretary <boardsec@feltonfire.com>

I reached out to Liberty. They have advised me that they would purchase the tower for $735,000. As I noticed that the
Board never went out and shopped around and took the first offer. I feel that this is bad business for all. I would like to
include this on the next scheduled Board meeting before we do anymore with Towerpoint.

---------- Forwarded message ---------
From: Alex Kreymer <alex@libertywi.com>
Date: Mon, Mar 31, 2025 at 12:08 PM
Subject: RE: CA-A650 - AT&T Rooftop Valuation
To: Stacie Brownlee <firechief@feltonfire.com>

Stacie,

As promised, please find attached, the letter of intent to purchase your AT&T lease. Please review and let me know if you
have any questions. Otherwise, I’ll follow up with you early next week to discuss further. Thanks and have a great day.

 Alex Kreymer

 Acquisitions Specialist

 Liberty Wireless Infrastructure

774-721-6256

 www.libertywi.com

From: Stacie Brownlee <firechief@feltonfire.com>
Sent: Thursday, March 27, 2025 1:29 PM
To: Alex Kreymer <alex@libertywi.com>
Subject: Re: CA-A650 - AT&T Rooftop Valuation

3270.58 a month rent. attached are the leases and amendments.

ITEM 7

mailto:alex@libertywi.com
mailto:firechief@feltonfire.com
http://www.libertywi.com/
mailto:firechief@feltonfire.com
mailto:alex@libertywi.com


Thanks Chief Stacie Brownlee

On Thu, Mar 27, 2025 at 10:25 AM Alex Kreymer <alex@libertywi.com> wrote:

Stacie,

Great speaking with you today. As discussed, if you could please provide a copy of the lease (and any amendments) as
well as the current rent amount, I can get you an offer back in short order. Please let me know if you have any
questions. Thank you.

 Alex Kreymer

 Acquisitions Specialist

 Liberty Wireless Infrastructure

774-721-6256

 www.libertywi.com

--

Stacie Brownlee

Fire Chief, 

Felton Fire Protection District

131 Kirby Street, Felton CA 95018

Office (831) 335-4422

Cell (831) 234-3840

--
Stacie Brownlee
Fire Chief, 
Felton Fire Protection District
131 Kirby Street, Felton CA 95018

ITEM 7

mailto:alex@libertywi.com
http://www.libertywi.com/
https://www.google.com/maps/search/131+Kirby+Street,+Felton+CA+95018+%0D%0A+%0D%0A+%0D%0A+Office+(831?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.google.com/maps/search/131+Kirby+Street,+Felton+CA+95018+%0D%0A+%0D%0A+%0D%0A+Office+(831?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.google.com/maps/search/131+Kirby+Street,+Felton+CA+95018+Office+(831?entry=gmail&source=g


Office (831) 335-4422
Cell (831) 234-3840

CA-A650 - Letter of Intent 3.31.25.pdf
96K

ITEM 7

https://www.google.com/maps/search/131+Kirby+Street,+Felton+CA+95018+Office+(831?entry=gmail&source=g
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=2298309679&view=att&th=195edc0410bc4dfe&attid=0.1&disp=attd&realattid=195edbba5df4376575b2&safe=1&zw
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=2298309679&view=att&th=195edc0410bc4dfe&attid=0.1&disp=attd&realattid=195edbba5df4376575b2&safe=1&zw


         March 31, 2025 

 

 

6586 West Atlantic Avenue, Delray Beach, FL 33446 

844-366-4321 

www.libertywi.com 

 

Liberty Wireless Infrastructure, LLC (including its affiliates, the “Buyer”) hereby tenders the following offer: 

 

1.  Acquisition.  The Buyer offers to acquire the AT&T rooftop lease located at 131 Kirby St, Felton, CA 

and all related assets and improvements, including interests in tenant leases and all other related property 

(collectively, the “Assets” further described in Exhibit A) owned by Felton Fire Protection District (the “Seller”) 

in exchange for Seven Hundred Thirty Five Thousand ($735,000.00).  The Assets will be conveyed in the form of 

a 55 year easement. Seller represents that there are executed tenant lease(s) with the rent(s) and escalator(s) shown 

on Exhibit A. As of the closing, the Assets shall be free from any liens or encumbrances.  The Buyer will not assume 

any liabilities or obligations other than for the period following closing under disclosed continuing leases and 

contracts.   

 

2.  New Tenant Revenue Share.   Seller shall receive fifty percent (50%) of revenue derived from new tenants. 

 

3. No Financing Contingency.  The offer made in Section 1 of this letter is not subject to any financing 

contingency. 

 

4.  Definitive Agreement.  The transaction will be embodied in a definitive agreement containing all of the 

terms and conditions thereof, with such representations and warranties, covenants, indemnities, and conditions as are 

customary to transactions of this nature, including a condition that no material adverse change shall have occurred in 

the assets, the operation, the financial condition, or the prospects of the Assets.   

 

5. Due Diligence; Exclusivity.  The consummation of the transaction is conditioned upon the Buyer being 

satisfied with the results of a due diligence review in which the Buyer and its representatives shall be afforded 

access at mutually-agreeable times to all facilities of and information regarding the Assets.  For a period of 30 days 

from the date this letter of intent is counter-signed by Seller, the Seller and its representatives will not, directly or 

indirectly, solicit, accept or negotiate any competing offers or provide any confidential information regarding the 

Assets to any third party.  If the Buyer has delivered a draft definitive agreement within the 30 day period, the 

exclusivity period will be extended by an additional 30 days so that the parties can finalize their negotiations. The 

Buyer will retain the equivalent of three (3) months’ rent from the proceeds and shall deliver the balance (less rent 

received by Seller post-closing), if any, to the Seller on the earlier of thirty (30) days after receipt of all scheduled 

rent by Buyer or three (3) months from the date of closing. 

 

6. Operation of the Assets.  Between the date of this letter and the closing of the transaction, each Seller will 

(a) in all material respects, operate the Assets only in the ordinary course and not enter into any contracts or leases 

which are not in the ordinary course and customary conduct of the Assets; (b) maintain the Assets in sufficient 

operating condition and repair to enable them to operate in all material respects in the manner in which they are 

currently operated; (c) not sell or encumber any of the Assets; (d) use its commercially reasonable efforts to 

continue all material existing insurance policies (or comparable insurance) of or relating to the Assets in full force 

and effect; (e) use its commercially reasonable efforts to preserve its relationship with its tenants and others having 

material business dealings with each Seller; (f) maintain its books of account related to the Assets in accordance 

with historical practices; and (g) materially comply with applicable rules and regulations related to the Assets. 

 

7. Binding and Non-binding Provisions.  It is understood that Section 1 of this letter represents an expression 

of our mutual intent to agree only.  No party shall in any way be bound to enter into the transaction until definitive 

agreements are executed and all other conditions to the consummation of the transaction have been fulfilled, 

including approval by the Buyer’s Board of Directors.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the parties agree that none of 

the provisions of this letter except Sections 4 and 7 are binding on the parties. 

 

ITEM 7



8. Broker; Expenses; Public Announcements.  The parties agree that, except as set forth in definitive

agreements, each will be responsible for its own legal, broker’s commissions, consulting fees and other expenses

and that neither will make any public release of information concerning the transaction (other than as required by

law after consultation with the other party).

9. Timing of a Transaction.  The Buyer is prepared to move expeditiously and close as soon as all conditions

in the definitive agreement are fulfilled.

10. Entire Agreement.  This letter contains the entire agreement between the parties with respect to its subject

matter and supersedes all negotiations, prior discussions, agreements, arrangements, and understandings, written or

oral, relating to the subject matter of this letter.

11. Expiration of Offer.  If this letter accurately reflects our understanding with respect to the matters covered

hereby, please sign, date, and return a copy to us. If this letter is not accepted by 5:00 p.m. (Eastern) 7 days from the

date of this letter, this proposal will expire.

Very truly yours, 

Liberty Wireless Infrastructure, LLC 

________________________________________ 

By:    

Title:  

ACCEPTED AND AGREED: 

Felton Fire Protection District 

By:   _______________________ 

Title: _______________________ 

Date: ______________________ 

ITEM 7



 

 

EXHIBIT A 

 

Site Address: 131 Kirby St, Felton, CA 

Asset Type: Rooftop 

 

Tenant(s) Monthly Rent Escalator (%) Annual/Term 

AT&T $3,270.58 7.5% Term 

    

    

    

    

 

ITEM 7



Board Secretary <boardsec@feltonfire.com>

Fwd: FW: SF95731A Felton Fire T-Mobile
Jim Anderson <janderson@feltonfire.com> Wed, Mar 19, 2025 at 9:09 AM
To: Board Secretary <boardsec@feltonfire.com>

Good morning, I'd like to have this on our next agenda. My intention is to see if there in favor of exploring further, or not
interested. Thanks Jim 
---------- Forwarded message ---------
From: Wuelfing, Budd <budd.wuelfing@t-mobile.com>
Date: Mon, Mar 17, 2025 at 11:02 AM
Subject: FW: SF95731A Felton Fire T-Mobile
To: janderson@feltonfire.com <janderson@feltonfire.com>
CC: McDonald, Angela <Angela.McDonald27@t-mobile.com>

Jim,

Thank you for your time on the phone last week.  As we discussed, T-Mobile is interested in discussing the possibility of
installing a new T-Mobile communication site at the Fire Station in Felton.  One possibility would be to increase the
existing cupola structure with antennas and the siren.  T-Mobile would handle all of the costs to install an increased
structure along with raising the existing antennas and siren/alarm horn.  Another option would be to install a new cupola
structure on the other part of the building.  This would match and be similar to the existing cupola.  We could put a new
siren/alarm horn on the top that could be functional or only for looks.

We would also need an equipment area similar to what AT+T has.  We would need to bring in a 200amp power service. 
We would also bring in high speed phone lines.

Attached are a few pictures showing the existing structure and the AT+T equipment.

Let me know what additional information that we could provide before your April meeting.

Thank you again for your time.

Budd Wuelfing

for ·T···Mobile USA
530-863-7342

5 attachments

ITEM 7

mailto:budd.wuelfing@t-mobile.com
mailto:janderson@feltonfire.com
mailto:janderson@feltonfire.com
mailto:Angela.McDonald27@t-mobile.com
mailto:Angela.McDonald27@t-mobile.com


3-Feb 28 2025 01_30pm-ern1.jpg
323K

4-Feb 28 2025 01_30pm-pxr7.jpg
304K

9-Feb 28 2025 01_30pm-bwWz.jpg
371K

18-Feb 28 2025 02_05pm-Jyqe.jpg
484K

SF95731A Fire roof TMO options.JPG
458K

ITEM 7

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=2298309679&view=att&th=195af2b6728bfb22&attid=0.1&disp=inline&realattid=195af292aa0fc7c6d302&safe=1&zw
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=2298309679&view=att&th=195af2b6728bfb22&attid=0.1&disp=inline&realattid=195af292aa0fc7c6d302&safe=1&zw
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=2298309679&view=att&th=195af2b6728bfb22&attid=0.2&disp=inline&realattid=195af292aa07ea0274c3&safe=1&zw
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=2298309679&view=att&th=195af2b6728bfb22&attid=0.2&disp=inline&realattid=195af292aa07ea0274c3&safe=1&zw
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=2298309679&view=att&th=195af2b6728bfb22&attid=0.3&disp=inline&realattid=195af292aa063ddd56a4&safe=1&zw
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=2298309679&view=att&th=195af2b6728bfb22&attid=0.3&disp=inline&realattid=195af292aa063ddd56a4&safe=1&zw
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=2298309679&view=att&th=195af2b6728bfb22&attid=0.4&disp=inline&realattid=195af292aa0ba39668d5&safe=1&zw
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=2298309679&view=att&th=195af2b6728bfb22&attid=0.4&disp=inline&realattid=195af292aa0ba39668d5&safe=1&zw
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=2298309679&view=att&th=195af2b6728bfb22&attid=0.5&disp=inline&realattid=195af292aa0834a14fc6&safe=1&zw
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=2298309679&view=att&th=195af2b6728bfb22&attid=0.5&disp=inline&realattid=195af292aa0834a14fc6&safe=1&zw


ITEM 7



Board Secretary <boardsec@feltonfire.com>

Fwd: Felton Fire | Power Solar Proposal
1 message

Stacie Brownlee <firechief@feltonfire.com> Thu, Apr 3, 2025 at 1:47 PM
To: Board Secretary <boardsec@feltonfire.com>

I already forwarded this to the Board. I think if we just put it on the agenda to discuss 

---------- Forwarded message ---------
From: Stacie Brownlee <firechief@feltonfire.com>
Date: Fri, Mar 28, 2025 at 10:24 AM
Subject: Fwd: Felton Fire | Power Solar Proposal
To: Jim Anderson <janderson@feltonfire.com>, Norman Crandell <ncrandell@feltonfire.com>, <mshults@feltonfire.com>,
Doug Conrad <dconrad@feltonfire.com>, <eschwanbeck@feltonfire.com>

Reached out to a solar company to see what it would cost to replace the system. Here is the powerpoint for your
reference. If you want I can agendize it for discussion.
---------- Forwarded message ---------
From: Jose Carrasco <jose@power.solar>
Date: Fri, Mar 28, 2025 at 9:35 AM
Subject: Felton Fire | Power Solar Proposal
To: firechief@feltonfire.com <firechief@feltonfire.com>

Hi Stacie, 

Thanks again for the time. As promised, attached to this email you can find a copy of the presentation we reviewed today.
Please share internally with the board and let us know how we can help with the internal decision process. We are more
than happy to jump on call with the board to address any questions/ concerns. 

Happy Friday! 
Jose

Jose Carrasco | POWER Solar
P: +1 (858) 567-1523
E: jose@power.solar

--
Stacie Brownlee
Fire Chief, 
Felton Fire Protection District
131 Kirby Street, Felton CA 95018
Office (831) 335-4422
Cell (831) 234-3840

--
Stacie Brownlee
Fire Chief, 

ITEM 7

mailto:firechief@feltonfire.com
mailto:janderson@feltonfire.com
mailto:ncrandell@feltonfire.com
mailto:mshults@feltonfire.com
mailto:dconrad@feltonfire.com
mailto:eschwanbeck@feltonfire.com
mailto:firechief@feltonfire.com
mailto:firechief@feltonfire.com
https://www.google.com/maps/search/131+Kirby+Street,+Felton+CA+95018+Office+(831?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.google.com/maps/search/131+Kirby+Street,+Felton+CA+95018+Office+(831?entry=gmail&source=g


Felton Fire Protection District
131 Kirby Street, Felton CA 95018
Office (831) 335-4422
Cell (831) 234-3840

Felton Fire Protection District Commercial Presentation.pdf
7668K

ITEM 7

https://www.google.com/maps/search/131+Kirby+Street,+Felton+CA+95018+Office+(831?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.google.com/maps/search/131+Kirby+Street,+Felton+CA+95018+Office+(831?entry=gmail&source=g
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=2298309679&view=att&th=195fd6913545ed30&attid=0.1&disp=attd&realattid=f_m8t06tjl0&safe=1&zw
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=2298309679&view=att&th=195fd6913545ed30&attid=0.1&disp=attd&realattid=f_m8t06tjl0&safe=1&zw


Felton Fire 
Protection District
Solar Project

ITEM 7



Agenda

● About POWER
● Utility Overview
● System Overview
● Project Incentives
● Project Costs
● Project Economics/Savings
● Project Comparison

ITEM 7



Commercial 
Solar 
Innovation

✔ Innovating for Over 35 Years

✔ Delivering the Greatest Value

✔ Lowest Total Cost of Ownership

✔ Focused on Organizational Goals

✔ Solutions to Maximize Incentives

✔ Save Over 85% for Power

ITEM 7



Government 
& Education

The Power Team has 
built its operations to 

fulfill top gov’t and 
education priorities. 

Diversity, Equity, 
Inclusion, Prevailing 

Wage and Guarantees 
not to exceed are core 

to our service and 
product offering.

ITEM 7



Current Bills

$1,445
$4,687

$8,460

$46,628

Years 0 5 10 15 20 25 30

*Here is the guide to read this 30-Year utility cost chart. Left number ($1,445) is representative of the average monthly utility cost you are currently paying. The red line represents the 
average increases across the USA over the past 10 years. The yellow line is more representative of what has happened in you area over the past 30 years. The Blue line represents what 
the Department of Energy recommends for budgeting: 4% increase per year. We will always use the DOE recommendation when we project savings and value of energy you produce 
with solar.

ITEM 7



131 Kirby Street

Project Summary

• 45.1 kW System
• Producing 66,700 kWh
• Includes all permits, labor, 

materials for the system (i.e. solar 
panels, inverters, wiring, conduit, 
Flush Roof, etc.)

• 30 Year Linear Power Output 
Warranty

ITEM 7



VSUN 550W Modules

Industry leading 
commercial-grade solar 
panels
• High-efficiency, Tier 1 solar panels
• 30-Year Linear Power Output 

Warranty
• IP68 Junction Box - enhanced dust 

and water resistance
• Up to 21.5% Module Efficiency

ITEM 7



Sunny HighPower Peak 3

Commercial application solar 
inverter, built for the future
• 25 Year Design Life
• 24/7 Monitoring
• Plug & Play adaptability for future

applications

ITEM 7



Commercial Battery Options 
for Demand Offset
• +8,500 Cycles (@ 80% DoD)
• 15 Year Warranty
• Up to 200Amp Demand
• Up to 16 in parallel

GSL Energy 14.34 kW Battery

ITEM 7



Project Timeline

Project 
Start

Day 0

Paperwork 
& Down 
Payment

Day 7

Site Survey 
Complete

Day 14

Design 
Engineering 

Complete

Day 21

Site Plan

Day 30

Permits 
Submitted

Day 60

Fabrication 
& Shipping

Day 90

Installation 
& Final 

Payment

Day 120

AHJ 
Inspection

Day 130

PTO

Day 150

ITEM 7



2025 Federal Investment Tax Credit @ 
30%

$64,002
*With the Inflation Reduction Act of 2022, NonProfit Entities

may elect to have the Federal ITC paid directly to them

ITEM 7



Net Project Cost

$213,340
-$64,002

$149,338

Project Cost
Federal ITC
Potential Net Cost

ITEM 7



Payment Options

Short Term
- 12 Month Bridge
- 24 Month Bridge
- 5 Year Amortization

Tax Solutions
- 7 Year Tax Lease
- 10 Year Tax Lease
- 15 - 30 Year PPA*

Longer Term
- 10 Year Financing
- 20 - 30 Year 

C-PACE*

*Certain options are only available based on availability based on region, property type or project size.

ITEM 7



Payment Options

20 Yr 9.75%
- 3% Finance Fee
- 30% Prepay
- $1,552 / mo

20 Yr 4.99%
- 3% Finance Fee
- 19.75% Buydown
- 30% Prepay
- $1,323  / mo

● No Money Down
● No Prepayment Penalty
● Reamortize throughout the term

ITEM 7



Cashflow Analysis (cash)
Year Utility Savings Tax Savings Total Solar Savings Solar Payments Cash Flow Cum. Cash Flow

0 $ 213,340.00 $ (213,340.00) $ (213,340.00)
1 $ 16,675.00 $ 64,002.00 $ 80,677.00 $ 80,677.00 $ (132,663.00)
2 $ 17,342.00 $ - $ 17,342.00 $ 17,342.00 $ (115,321.00)
3 $ 18,035.68 $ - $ 18,035.68 $ 18,035.68 $ (97,285.32)
4 $ 18,757.11 $ - $ 18,757.11 $ 18,757.11 $ (78,528.21)
5 $ 19,507.39 $ - $ 19,507.39 $ 19,507.39 $ (59,020.82)
6 $ 20,287.69 $ 20,287.69 $ 20,287.69 $ (38,733.13)
7 $ 21,099.19 $ 21,099.19 $ 21,099.19 $ (17,633.94)
8 $ 21,943.16 $ 21,943.16 $ 21,943.16 $ 4,309.22
9 $ 22,820.89 $ 22,820.89 $ 22,820.89 $ 27,130.11

10 $ 23,733.72 $ 23,733.72 $ 23,733.72 $ 50,863.84
11 $ 24,683.07 $ 24,683.07 $ 24,683.07 $ 75,546.91
12 $ 25,670.40 $ 25,670.40 $ 25,670.40 $ 101,217.31
13 $ 26,697.21 $ 26,697.21 $ 26,697.21 $ 127,914.52
14 $ 27,765.10 $ 27,765.10 $ 27,765.10 $ 155,679.62
15 $ 28,875.70 $ 28,875.70 $ 28,875.70 $ 184,555.32
16 $ 30,030.73 $ 30,030.73 $ 30,030.73 $ 214,586.06
17 $ 31,231.96 $ 31,231.96 $ 31,231.96 $ 245,818.02
18 $ 32,481.24 $ 32,481.24 $ 32,481.24 $ 278,299.26
19 $ 33,780.49 $ 33,780.49 $ 33,780.49 $ 312,079.75
20 $ 35,131.71 $ 35,131.71 $ 35,131.71 $ 347,211.46
21 $ 36,536.98 $ 36,536.98 $ 36,536.98 $ 383,748.44
22 $ 37,998.46 $ 37,998.46 $ 37,998.46 $ 421,746.90
23 $ 39,518.40 $ 39,518.40 $ 39,518.40 $ 461,265.29
24 $ 41,099.13 $ 41,099.13 $ 41,099.13 $ 502,364.42
25 $ 42,743.10 $ 42,743.10 $ 42,743.10 $ 545,107.52
26 $ 44,452.82 $ 44,452.82 $ 44,452.82 $ 589,560.34
27 $ 46,230.93 $ 46,230.93 $ 46,230.93 $ 635,791.28
28 $ 48,080.17 $ 48,080.17 $ 48,080.17 $ 683,871.45
29 $ 50,003.38 $ 50,003.38 $ 50,003.38 $ 733,874.82
30 $ 52,003.51 $ 52,003.51 $ 52,003.51 $ 785,878.34

TOTAL $ 935,216.34 $ 64,002.00 $ 999,218.34 $ 213,340.00 $ 785,878.34 $ 785,878.34

First Year of Positive Cashflow
Last Year of Payments

30 Year Totals
ITEM 7



Cashflow Analysis (finance 4.99%)
Year Utility Savings Tax Savings Total Solar Savings Solar Payments Cash Flow Cum. Cash Flow

1 $ 16,675.00 $ 82,850.49 $ 99,525.49 $ (14,548.87) $ 84,976.62 $ 84,976.62
2 $ 17,342.00 $ - $ 17,342.00 $ (98,721.98) $ (81,379.98) $ 3,596.64
3 $ 18,035.68 $ - $ 18,035.68 $ (15,871.49) $ 2,164.19 $ 5,760.83
4 $ 18,757.11 $ - $ 18,757.11 $ (15,871.49) $ 2,885.61 $ 8,646.44
5 $ 19,507.39 $ - $ 19,507.39 $ (15,871.49) $ 3,635.90 $ 12,282.34
6 $ 20,287.69 $ 20,287.69 $ (15,871.49) $ 4,416.19 $ 16,698.53
7 $ 21,099.19 $ 21,099.19 $ (15,871.49) $ 5,227.70 $ 21,926.24
8 $ 21,943.16 $ 21,943.16 $ (15,871.49) $ 6,071.67 $ 27,997.91
9 $ 22,820.89 $ 22,820.89 $ (15,871.49) $ 6,949.40 $ 34,947.30

10 $ 23,733.72 $ 23,733.72 $ (15,871.49) $ 7,862.23 $ 42,809.53
11 $ 24,683.07 $ 24,683.07 $ (15,871.49) $ 8,811.58 $ 51,621.12
12 $ 25,670.40 $ 25,670.40 $ (15,871.49) $ 9,798.90 $ 61,420.02
13 $ 26,697.21 $ 26,697.21 $ (15,871.49) $ 10,825.72 $ 72,245.74
14 $ 27,765.10 $ 27,765.10 $ (15,871.49) $ 11,893.61 $ 84,139.35
15 $ 28,875.70 $ 28,875.70 $ (15,871.49) $ 13,004.21 $ 97,143.56
16 $ 30,030.73 $ 30,030.73 $ (15,871.49) $ 14,159.24 $ 111,302.80
17 $ 31,231.96 $ 31,231.96 $ (15,871.49) $ 15,360.47 $ 126,663.27
18 $ 32,481.24 $ 32,481.24 $ (15,871.49) $ 16,609.75 $ 143,273.02
19 $ 33,780.49 $ 33,780.49 $ (15,871.49) $ 17,909.00 $ 161,182.01
20 $ 35,131.71 $ 35,131.71 $ (15,871.49) $ 19,260.22 $ 180,442.23
21 $ 36,536.98 $ 36,536.98 $ 36,536.98 $ 216,979.21
22 $ 37,998.46 $ 37,998.46 $ 37,998.46 $ 254,977.67
23 $ 39,518.40 $ 39,518.40 $ 39,518.40 $ 294,496.06
24 $ 41,099.13 $ 41,099.13 $ 41,099.13 $ 335,595.20
25 $ 42,743.10 $ 42,743.10 $ 42,743.10 $ 378,338.29
26 $ 44,452.82 $ 44,452.82 $ 44,452.82 $ 422,791.11
27 $ 46,230.93 $ 46,230.93 $ 46,230.93 $ 469,022.05
28 $ 48,080.17 $ 48,080.17 $ 48,080.17 $ 517,102.22
29 $ 50,003.38 $ 50,003.38 $ 50,003.38 $ 567,105.60
30 $ 52,003.51 $ 52,003.51 $ 52,003.51 $ 619,109.11

TOTAL $ 935,216.34 $ 82,850.49 $ 1,018,066.82 $ (398,957.71) $ 619,109.11 $ 619,109.11

First Year of Positive Cashflow
Last Year of Payments

30 Year Totals
ITEM 7



Months 8+Months 6-8Month 5Months 2-5Months 1-2

Average Timeline

Installation 
Process

Incentive 
Process

Document 
Process

Finance Application, 
Review, Approval
REAP Application 
Submitted, Accepted

Begin engineering 
drawings and site plan 
review after REAP 
acceptance

Procure Materials, 
Mobilize Crew, 
Schedule Installation

Install Solar System, 
Pass Inspection, 
Obtain PTO from 
Utility Co.

Approve Site Plans, 
Submit for Permits, 
Submit Interconnect 
Application

Now eligible to file for 
tax incentives

Completion 
submission to USDA 
for Grants and Finance

Receive Grant 
Disbursements, 
ensure proper prod. 
for Carbon Credits

Typically (may be 
earlier) receive tax 
incentives on next tax 
submission

Ensure monitoring and 
access are working 
properly

Typically (may be 
earlier) file for tax 
incentives on annual 
returns

ITEM 7



How do we stack up?

ITEM 7



The Great Equalizer
When comparing the value of solar to the cost of energy from the utility company or even the value of solar from one 

company to another the cost per guaranteed kWh. It is the one metric that is the same across all companies giving you the 

power to understand TRUE VALUE.

Typical Tier 1 Solar Systems

• A 45.1kW System would 
generate about 1,534,100 
kWh in its guaranteed life 
span

• Costs $________________________ 
after incentives

• Take Cost and divide by the 
number of guaranteed kWh 
(listed above) to get overall 
cost per kWh

Power Solar

• Our system generates a 
guaranteed 1,824,912 kWh 
in its guaranteed life span

• This system costs $149,338 
after incentives

• $149,338 / 1,824,912 results 
in overall $0.0818 per kWh

• This includes the cost of the 
steel overhang structure in 
the cost for energy

PG&E

• Unlimited number of 
kWh

• Early 2025 Rates $0.25 / 
kWh

• January 2026 increase 
of 26%

• Increasing in cost every 
year

ITEM 7



Technology

Power Solar

• Commercial-grade panels and
inverter built for ground mounts in
dusty areas

• Tier 1 Equipment
• Built to last for many years longer

than standard residential systems
• Minimal linear degradation, leading

to more power over time

The Other Guys

• Standard residential panels and
inverters built for roof-top systems

• Tier 1 Equipment
• Industry standard lifespan and

standard linear degradation

ITEM 7



Experience

Power Solar

• Focused on the overall goals of the
customer

• Complete CapEx & OpEx analysis to
maximize customer results

• In-depth knowledge on demand
charge offset

• Exclusive partnership for automating
carbon credits

• Deep relationships and knowledge
with the USDA to maximize all
programs and benefits available

The Other Guys

• Mostly residential experience and
apply best practices to commercial
applications

• Deal focused

ITEM 7



Warranty

Power Solar

• Up to 30 Years on Production
• Up to 25 Years on the Inverter

The Other Guys

• Up to 20 Years on Production
• Up to 10 Years on the Inverter

ONLY SYSTEM THAT’S DOUBLE BACKED

ITEM 7



Production

Power Solar

• With 5 more guaranteed years of
production and minimal degradation
the difference in production is clear:

• 1,824,912 kWh Guaranteed

The Other Guys

• Standard residential production
guarantee and standard degradation
delivers a decent ROI over the life:

• 1,534,100 kWh Guaranteed

290,812 MORE KWH

ITEM 7



Performance Value

Power Solar

• Performance Value of 1,824,912 kWh 
with minimal increase: $842,171.39

• $210,251.92 more power produced

The Other Guys

• Performance Value of 1,534,100 kWh 
with minimal increase: $631,919.46

• At minimum the company would need 
to be prepared to pay $210,251.92 in 
PG&E tariffs to compensate for the 
degradation

$210,251.92 MORE POWER

ITEM 7



Maintenance

Power Solar

• Maintenance-Free with Industry only
dust rating

• Power Solar Guarantee to service any
product or component issues

The Other Guys

• None included
• Will likely need to purchase additional

inverters at year 10 and year 20

ITEM 7



Economic Summary

Power Solar

$1,323 per month, NEVER 
CHANGES until it becomes $0

Year 21 monthly payment is $0

Today with the Utility

$1,445 per month, INCREASING 
by at least 4% every year

Year 21 monthly payment is $3,045

1. Save $123 Each Month on Day 1
2. $0 to get started

ITEM 7



To: Board of Directors  

From: Erica Schwanbeck, Director 

Agenda of: April 14th, 2025 

Subject: SOP Ad Hoc Committee Updates 

Background 

“Ad hoc” committees were established at the February 15, 2025, Special Meeting of the Board of 
Directors to facilitate the updating of documentation relating to the Budget, Strategic Plan, and 
Standard Operating Procedures (SOP). Board Chair Crandell and Director Schwanbeck were 
identified as the SOP Ad Hoc Committee. During the March 3, 2025, Regular Meeting of the Board, 
the Board was asked by the Committee to review Section 3000 in its entirety in advance of a vote at 
the April meeting. 

Analysis 

In preparation to distribute Section 3000 to the Board members for review, the existing SOPs from 
the District’s eLearning and training environment, VectorSolutions, were downloaded. The nearly 
200 pages of SOPs were reformatted for ease of readability and partially reviewed by the 
Committee. However, in the Shared Services Agreement with Ben Lomond Fire Protection District 
(BLFPD), section 1.2.2.(b), executed by the Board on October 7, 2024, states BLFPD shall do as 
follows: 

(b) Apply the BLFPD Rules, Regulations, Policies and Practices in both jurisdictions except for
specific rules, regulations, and policies pertaining to fiscal and personnel management that are
unique to the FFPD. In the event of such unique requirements such changes shall be in the form
of an appendix to the Ben Lomond Rules Regulations and Policies. The Fire Chief will follow the
requirements of the Firefighters Procedural Bill of Rights in both jurisdictions when conducting
employee investigations and interviews.

As such the BLFPD, which were confirmed to be the same as those available in VectorSolutions, 
remain in effect. 

Recommendation: 

No action needed by the Board at this time. The Committee will be taking a slower approach to 
adjusting and refining the policies and SOPs, utilizing industry standards to inform 
recommendations for our District. As revised, these SOPs will be brought to the Board as either 
consent items or for discussion, depending on the implications and/or risks of the edits. These 
edits will be brought forth in such a way that minimizes the overall impact to the Chief’s leadership 
for the duration of the Shared Services Agreement with BLFPD. 

ITEM 8 




